
STREETS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 

 
The Streets Committee meeting was held on September 6, 2016 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State 
Road. The meeting was called to order at 6:09 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Steve Muller, Vice Chair Larry Antoskiewicz, John Nickell; Council: 
Gary Petrusky, Dan Langshaw, Paul Marnecheck, Dan Kasaris; Administration: Mayor Robert Stefanik, Law 
Director Thomas Kelly, City Engineer Mark Schmitzer, Assistant Law Director Donna Vozar; Other: Lou 
Krzepina. 
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Nickell, seconded by Mr. Antoskiewicz to approve the July 5, 2016 Streets Committee 
minutes. Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. Motion carried.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Issue 1 Funding 
Mr. Schmitzer said that we will be applying for two roads this year; Edgerton Road and Tilby Road. We 
applied last year for both of these roads. If we are unsuccessful on Edgerton Road, we already have a 
commitment from the county to assist us with this project in the amount of $250,000. The total cost is 
around $700,000. We are hoping that this commitment will help our scoring for this round of Issue 1 
funding. Mr. Marnecheck asked what will be done on Edgerton Road. Mr. Schmitzer said that it will be 
either a single pass or a mill and fill. He said that we will price out both options. Mr. Kasaris asked what 
portion of Edgerton is being proposed in this project. Mr. Schmitzer said it is the section between Bennett 
Road and Ridge Road, and extends a couple hundred feet east of Ridge Road. Mr. Kasaris asked when this 
section of the road was last done. Mayor Stefanik said 1999. Mr. Kasaris asked if this was done the same 
time as Bennett Road was done. Mayor Stefanik said that a Cleveland Water line came down towards 
Medina. They incased the waterline in cement, but the other side of the street was just milled and filled. 
Mr. Kasaris asked if we will then have similar issues to what occurred on Bennett Road as far as the base 
not being what it should be. Mr. Schmitzer said that this is a possibility. Mr. Kasaris asked if this happens, 
how will that effect the cost. Mr. Schmitzer said that we try to plan for this, as we did with Bennett Road, 
and put in a higher percentage of base repairs for the road. Mr. Kasaris asked when Bennett Road was last 
done between the Turnpike and Edgerton Road. Mr. Schmitzer said it was 1997 or 1998. Mr. Kasaris said 
that there is not one pothole on that stretch of Bennett Road. He said that this is the way a road should be 
done. He asked if this is what happens when you have a good base. Mr. Schmitzer said that everything 
starts with a good solid base from which to build. Discussion of water lines located in the area was held.  
 

2. North Royalton Alternative Transportation Study 
No update. Mr. Kasaris said that a very good job is being done on the sidewalks in front of the cemetery 
on Royalton Road. Mayor Stefanik said that we will be replacing the sidewalks from the church east to the 
Giant Eagle parking lot as well. 
 

3. Service Department Report 
A copy of this report is attached to these minutes. 
 

4. Outstanding punch list items 
Mr. Schmitzer said that a meeting is coming up with the contractor for the 2014 road program to fix the 
ponding issue at Julia Drive and Ridge Road. This is the only outstanding item remaining on the punch 
list. He said that the only outstanding item left on the Bennett Road punch list is verification from the 
contractor that work has been completed on a couple of the manholes that we had asked to be reordered 
and reset. He said regarding the 2015 road program, we have come to an agreement with the contactor to 
have 26-27 driveways redone on Abbey Road. They will be cutting out and replacing in kind to make the 
slopes work, as well as add fill material on the east edge of the road and along the drive transitions to 
provide better slopes. He said that we are analyzing the data that we had the contractor verify. They shot 



Streets Committee September 6, 2016 Page 2 
 

some elevations so that we can make sure the slopes are adequate and go back far enough to get all of the 
slopes corrected. Once this is done, they will work on the remaining punch list items on Hawley, Akins 
and the other roads. He felt that this would be done by early next month. Mr. Marnecheck asked if there 
was a time table for the Julia/Ridge ponding issue. He said that it seems to be worse than it was prior to the 
work being done. Mr. Schmitzer said that he does not have a timetable currently, but hopes to have a 
resolution sometime this week. Mr. Marnecheck asked what the solution is for this problem. Mr. 
Schmitzer said they will mill out along the curb. If you look at the north west corner of the intersection, 
there is a patch of asphalt that was done on Julia and then it travels along the southbound lane of Ridge 
Road to where the water is holding. If they mill this all the way through and put asphalt in, they can 
control the flow of water towards the catch basin on Ridge Road which is just past the intersection.  
 

5. Bennett Road 
See Item 4 above. 
 

6. 2016 Infrastructure Program 
Mr. Schmitzer said that it is moving along very well. Lytle Road is complete. The only thing remaining is 
four ADA sidewalk modifications at Beckenham and Greyfriars. They are scheduled to do this work later 
this week and that should complete the work for Lytle Road. He said that he has received two calls from 
residents about transitions to their driveways and holding water. This is already on our punch list and we 
will get those corrected. Mr. Schmitzer said that the other programs are moving along very well, it is just a 
lot of curb replacement and catch basin adjustments rebuilds. We are hoping to finish this up within the 
next two weeks and have all of our road programs done. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that Lytle Road turned out 
very well. Mr. Schmitzer said that they added sidewalks to the bids for the intersections of Sir Robert and 
Prince Charles that were never built as a part of the original subdivision.  
 
Mr. Schmitzer said that the last 200 feet of Donmar is going to be improved down near the east end. When 
the Engineering Department was given the task to do this, we noticed that some of the existing roadway 
was now shifted out of the public right of way. There would have been significant cost to move everything 
into the right of way. He said that they spoke with the Law Department and we got in touch with the 
property owner and we have a right of way easement that has been signed by the property owners to allow 
us to make things work and do the improvement to the cul-de-sac for the future. He said that it won’t be as 
large as our other cul-de-sacs because there is not enough room, but there is enough room to do a concrete 
cul-de-sac. We are cement stabilizing the ground, placing a concrete cul-de-sac with a small bump out so 
that a truck can turn, back up and still get out. He said that the last 200 feet will be asphalt on top of the 
stabilized base. Once we get approval from Council on this easement, we can move forward with getting 
the rest of the work done. Mr. Kasaris asked if the road shifting could have been caused by the water that 
runs through Mr. Hack’s property under the road and to the house to the north. Mr. Schmitzer said that he 
is unsure of how this occurred. When the road was built, it was not intended to be a dedicated road so he is 
unsure if it was built to the same standards that we use for publicly dedicated roads. Mr. Kelly said that we 
have searched and have not found any documentation that this roadway was ever publicly dedicated. But 
having used it for public purposes for many years, we have it by prescription. He said that we may come to 
Council one day and ask for formal dedication. Mr. Kasaris said that because we have it by prescription, 
we have a duty to maintain it. Mr. Kelly said this is correct. Mr. Kasaris said that this is why we are doing 
what we are to the cul-de-sac. Mr. Kelly said that this is part of the reason, the other reason has to do with 
access to the back area and the ability for our fire and rubbish trucks to make this turn. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
No new business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Antoskiewicz, seconded by Mr. Nickell to adjourn the September 6, 2016 meeting. Yeas: 3. 
Nays: 0. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.  
 



Street Department & Storm Water Department Monthly Report – August 2016 
 
8/1/16-MON.  
Joint Repair – Oakwood Ln. 
Concrete – Queensbridge Ln. 
Ditching – 8001 Ridgedale Dr, 8053 Edgerton Rd. 
Storm Water – vac and clean all catch basins on Queensbridge Ln. 
Rec. Dept – sent 1 guy down to help out. 
 
8/2/16-TUES. 
Concrete –rip out and set up for Wednesday pour on Oakwood Ln. 
Asphalt – repaired asphalt strip for WW on Parkdale Dr, sent crew to State @ Sprague to fix CWD dig. 
Storm Water – cleaned Apollo retention basin. 
Rec. Dept – sent 3 guys down to help out. 
 
8/3/16-WED. 
Joint Repair – Oakwood Ln. 
Concrete – finish Oakwood Ln. 
Culvert Pipe – 7699 Wallings Rd tear out and replace pipe and set up for Friday pour. 
Mowing – cutting grass and weed whacking around Compost Building. 
Storm Water – cleaning Queens Way retention basin. 
 
8/4/16-THURS. 
Joint Repair – Oakwood Ln. 
Concrete – poured 1 catch basin on Bunker Rd and 1 catch basin on Maplegrove Ave. also poured a slab 
at 5090 Corkwood Dr. 
Saw Cutting – all recent concrete pours. 
Rec. Dept – sent 2 guys down to help out. 
Ditching – Compost Building along the driveway. 
 
8/5/16-FRI. 
Joint Repair-finished Oakwood Ln. 
Concrete-poured the apron at 7699 Wallings Rd. then sent the crew to St. Thomas woods; we will be 
rebuilding 6 catch basins and 2 slab replacements.  
Rec. Dept.-sent one guy down to help out. 
 
8/8/16-MON. 
Catch Basins-St. Thomas Woods continue to rebuild the basins. 
Crack Sealing-sealing all recent concrete work.  
Rt.82 & York-clean up around turnpike divider and the curb. 
Rec. Dept.-sent two guys down to help out. 
 
8/9/16-TUES. 
Catch Basins-finish the basins in St. Thomas & set up for a Wednesday pour. 
Crack Sealing- continue to seal recent concrete & asphalt work that was done. 
Rt.82-finish our clean up at Abbey and W130, both sides of Rt.82. 
Rec. Dept-sent two guys down to help out. 
 
 
 



8/10/16-WEDS. 
Concrete-poured 15yds. In St Thomas Woods; 6 Catch Basins and one slab. 
Tree Trimming-areas throughout the city that are blocking stop signs and traffic lights [per N.R.P.D.]. 
Culvert pipe-replaced pipe at 12150 Albion Rd. we will do the asphalt Thursday. 
 
8/11/16-THUR. 
Asphalt-installed the apron at 12150 Albion; then sent the same crew out to finish the tree trimming. 
Concrete-rip out and pour a slab on Corkwood. 
Rec. Dept.-sent two guys down to help out. 
 
8/12/16-FRI. 
Concrete-rip out and pour a slab at 5239 Waterbridge. 
Storm Basin Maintenance-sent three 2 man crews out to check and clean all debris away from our hot 
spots; heavy rains in the forecast.  
Rec. Dept.-sent one guy down to help out. 
 
8/15/16-MON. 
Concrete-start ripping out the intersection at Yorkview and Tilby. 
Joint Repair-Cheapeake Dr. 
Culvert Pipe-2 pipes need to be lowered to get proper water flow on this section of Albion.  
 
8/16/16-TUES. 
Concrete-continue to rip out the intersection at Yorkview & Tilby; pour the first half Wednesday. 
Culvert Pipe-11998 Albion replaced pipe and moved down one driveway to 11986 Albion. 
Asphalt-did joint repair in the morning, the crew then went to 11998 Albion to install the apron. 
 
8/17/16-WEDS. 
Concrete-poured 15yds of the intersection [Yorkview & Tilby]. 
Crack Seal-Finish Swan Lake. Start on Villa Grande. 
Culvert Pipe-poured the apron at 11986 Albion Rd. 
 
8/18/16-THUR. 
Asphalt-Ridge Rd. grind down bad areas and put down asphalt strips north of Rt82. 
Concrete-pour the handicap sidewalk leading to the Yorkview intersection. 
Catch Basins-11240 Villa Grande. 
Compost Yard-sent three guys down to clean up the back lot. 
 
8/19/16-FRI. 
Concrete-poured the curb area of the intersection [Yorkview]. 
Asphalt-continue to grind out and repair Ridge Rd. 
Signs-put up all of our flags around the center of the city. 
 
 
8/22/16-MON. 
Asphalt-continue to grind out and repair Ridge Rd. 
Concrete- move over to the other side of the intersection [Yorkview]. 
Catch Basin-finish the basin on Villa Grande. 
Rec. Dept.-sent one guy down to help out. 
 
 



8/23/16-TUES. 
Asphalt-Ridge Rd. stop at Royalview elementary school, [do to traffic] move to the other side and work 
our way back to RT.82. 
Concrete-continue to work on the intersection, Yorkview. 
Mowing-start cutting and weed whacking guardrails. 
Landscaping-Bennett Rd. we did the curb area from Rt82 to old city hall. 
 
8/24/16-WEDS. 
Asphalt-Ridge & Tilby also Ridge & Wallings grind out and repair. 
Concrete-pour the rest of the intersection, we will have one small piece around the basin to pour 
tomorrow. 
Mowing-continue to cut around the guardrails. 
Cemetery sidewalks-rip out and repair in front of memorial at the cemetery and the city green. 
 
8/25/16-THUR. 
Asphalt-finish grinding out Ridge by Wallings, move down to Ridge and Royalwood. 
Concrete-pour the basin on Yorkview, then sent the crew up to the city green & the cemetery to do 
sidewalk replacement they will be ripping out and setting up for a Friday pour. 
Mowing-continue to cut around the guardrails. 
Cemetery sidewalks-continue to set up sidewalks for a Friday pour. 
 
8/26/16-FRI. 
Crack Sealing-finish Villa Grande; also seal all of the strip repairs we did on Ridge Rd. 
Concrete-pour the sidewalks at the cemetery and the city green. 
Mowing-Finish mowing & weed whacking around guardrails.  
 
8/29/16-MON. 
Concrete-poured the other side of 5239 Waterbridge. 
Crack Sealing-sealed all of Oakwood Ln. 
Mowing-start cutting our retention basins. 
Street Sweeping-north end of Vista and Royalton Woods. 
 
8/30/16-TUES. 
Concrete-rip out and replace a few sections of Sidewalk just north of Willow Lake development. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
Culvert Pipe-rip out and replace the pipe at 8053 Edgerton Rd. we will do the pour Wednesday 
Mowing-continue cutting our retention basins. 
 
8/31/16-WEDS. 
Concrete-poured apron at 8053 Edgerton Rd. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 5 guys down to help out. 
Catch Basins-10020 Brookside, and start cinnamon Lake [5 basins need repaired]. 


	090616 Streets Minutes
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS

	090616 Streets Minutes - EXHIBIT

